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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT -OF COMMON PLEAS
. FOR THE FIFTH JUBICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF RICHLAND: Civil Action No. 2009-CP-40-8302.
S Lisa Willett and Alan Willett,

L Plaintiffs,
_v_

Bank-of America Corporation, Your
Best Rate Financial; LL.C, Brant
Gilmore, Action Appraisals and
Rotert Poiner,

Defendants.

N N Nt vt i Nt et Nt?'s N U.u v:\-/ N N N N

|

This métter ¢om¢s befo,r_ek the Court on January 15, 2015 at a hearing on Plaintiffs'

Motion for Damages. Preserit at this hearing were Peter Protopapas, Esquire, and BrianJ’Qu‘incey

| Newmar; Esquire, Counsel for the Plaintiffs, and also. Robert Mukenfuss, .Esquire, :and
Richmond McPherson, Esquire, Counsel for Defendant Bank of America. After c’onsidering{thé:

parties’ filings, the argumenis dffcounse_ll, the parties' post- hearing briefs, :and.applicable law, the

Court. makes the.following Findings of Fact. andConclus’ions of Law:

| . FINDINGS OF FACT
| | ~ 1# The:Summons and Coaiplaint were filed on November 23;2009.
! 2. Service was made upon registered agent.of Bank of America Corpotation. Defendant Bank
of Alﬁ‘e}rifca. is in.Défaﬁlt as shown by an Order of Default filed on June -1'6-;(20:'1."1.
3." Your-Best-Rate Financial, LLC was an agent acting in both.its‘own capacity. and as an agent -
| of Countrywide Home Loans, predecessor in interest: to Bank «of America! its agents and

; _ subsidiaries. For the purposes of this ‘Order, the actions of Your-Best-Rate Financial LLC
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t 4.
|
|
5,
6
; 7.
| 8.
g 9.
|
|

and its agents, and Countrywide. Loans and its agents, are imputed to Defendant Bank of

America. ‘

A

- On or about September 15, 2005, Plaintiffs entered into. a contract for' construction and

_purchase -of a home. at 2964 Riverwood Drive, Mount Pleasant,'SC 29466 with John Wieland

Homes. At the time of the signing of the contract, they put down $5,000.00 as & builder

:deposit and additional sums for de‘poéits for upgrades on the house that was: to. be built, The
contract purchase price was $618,900.00 plus additional funds for upgraded features.

. On orabout October 9, 2006, Plaintiffs were contacted by John Wieland Homes. They were

informed that the construction was nearing -completion.and they -needed to secure financing

for the-.completed house.

. On or-about October 17, 2006, Plaintiffs received an email from- Steve ﬁuhl advertising the
“services of Your-Best-Ratg Financial, LLC. |
On or about October 24, 2006, Plaintiffs sent to Braﬁt Gilmore a-copy of a loan application
they: had submitted to Qﬁii:_ken. Loans. :contai.ning: their finanéial information for ‘Your-Best-
‘Rate Financial; LLC and Brant Gilmore to use in creating a loan applicatien with Your- Best-
' Rate Finaneial, LLC.
- In an-email _d"atcd October 24, 2006, Brant Gilmore acknowledged receipt of this email and
‘the attached informatien:
- The loan application was taken by Brant Gilmore over f;hc phone, Plainitiffs provided. Mr.

Gilmore with documents, such as a W-2, pay stubs, bank statements, asset information and.

contracts to verify employment. The only copy of the loan application-provided:to Plaintiffs
was at the closing. At the time they were not granted adequate opportunity to review the

documents and to verify the statements contained therein. Additionally, they were trusting,
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10.

that the mortgage broker would. use the information provided. to accutately reflect their
financial situation.
On October 31, 2006, Plaintiffs sighed a Borrower Application Disclosure with Your-Best-

Rate Financial, LLC. They also received a Good Faith Estimate, at this time.

11. From.on ot about November 2; 2006 until the date of the closing; there was communication

‘between Plaintiffs and Your-Best-Rate Financial, LLC, Brant Gilmore and other employees

regarding the information provided by Plaintiffs.

12, During this time, Brant Gilmore répeatedly assured Plaintiffs that he was examining the

13.

documents provided for the loan application: closely.

On Novermber 21, 2006, Piaintiffs received via email a copy of ‘an. appraisal on the. property

~ dated November 17, 2006, completed by Robert Poiner of Action Appraisals which reported

-a salés value on the. property of $820,000.00. In the .days. priot to receiving appraisal,
Plaintiffs were: considering' not comipleting the purchase transaction. They were aware that

they would forfeit the deposit, but were worried about losing even.more money than that if

“they proceeded to the closing, When they were -sent the appraisal by Brant Gilmore, they

decided to proceed ‘with the transaction. According to -the appraisal, the property had
sufficient equity in it to séll at a profit if necessary, Plaintiffs are informed and beliéve that

the ‘appraiser and appraisal company furnished to them a negligently, -grossty mnegligent

" reckless, and/ or willfully inaccurate appraisal.

14.

15..

On or about November 22, 2006, Plaintiffs closed on a loan for the puichase of the house 4t
2984 Riverwoeod Drive; Mount Pleasant; SC 29466.

At the closing, Plaintiffs signed a note promising to repay Your-Bést-Rate Financial, LLC a

- total amount of $636,000.00.
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16. At the closing, Plaintiffs -sig'ne,d a mortgage granting -a. security interest to ‘Mortgage
Electronic Registration Systems, Inc. as nominée for Your-Best-Rate-Financial, LLC.

17. The HUD-1 Seftlement Statement for the - loan in the 800 section indicated that Your-Best-
Rate Financial, LLC:ieceived finds from a third- party that were not properly disclosed at the

' time of closing,.

18. Lines 805, 806, and 807 of the HUD-1 were marked "POC: T." inﬁi’cati-ﬁg, they were paid
oufside of closing by the lender. On the first page; however, the.1énder is listed as Your-Best-
Raté Financial, LLC.

19. The information on the HUD-1 was provided by Your-Best-Rate Financf‘i’z{l‘, LLC to the.
closing agent.

20. Pl,ai'ljtiff,s aré informed. and believe. that Your;Beét-‘Rate Financial, LLC was never wtﬁé frue: _‘
lender and that the true lendet was always Cotuntrywide, Bank of America's predecessor in

© interest.

21. Plaintiffs are informed an‘d‘ believe that.‘Y‘our-Best-Ra‘t"e Financial, LLC and Brant Gi,lr.r_iore;.
wete -acting as dgents and representatives of Countrywide Home Lioans,, and that
Countrywide Home Lo_‘aﬁs is responsible for the actions of its agents.

22. Plaintiffs are inforimed and believe Countrywide Home Loans n/k/a Bank of America ‘is
liable for the actions of its agents, Your-Best-Rate Financial, LLC and Brant Gilmore..

23. The ~cl§singg took place at The Brownyard Law Firm, at 1476 Ben Sawyer Blvd., Mt.
Pleaéant, SC 29466. This closing agent was: desigi_nafed by someone other than the Plaintiffs.

. At no time prior' to the closing did Y011_r-Best-;Ra.té Finahci-al,- .“LL'C? Brant Gilmoie or
Count\rywide H‘é)m'e Loans n/k/a. Bank of America attempt to determine what closing, agent

Plaintiffs wanted-to use.
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i 24. At the closing, Plaintiff Lisa. Willett was directed to sign the closing documents for herself.

[ _ and as Plaintiff Alan Willett's Attorney in fact. This was the first time Plaintiffs had seen the -
! " loan application., They never assumed. anything other than the correct finfOr-m‘ation they
3 provided would be utilized and therefore relied on and trusted Brant Gilmore and Your-Best-
P Rate Financial, ILC. Given the limited time for ¢losing the tiansaction and that no

assumption of misconduet occurred, Plaintiff Lisa Willett -did not examing the loan
~ documentation to ﬁhe extent of recalculating financial information on the application.

25. Plairitiffs had provided to Your-Best-Rate- Financial, LLC and Brant Gilmote complete and
accurate information for the loan application and trusted Brant Gilmore to complete. the loan
application with the correct information provided by Plaintiffs.

26. Since the loan closing; Plaintiffs have had to rely on credit cards and family members to

{ - make their .monthly mortgage payments each month. They have had to pay additional
interest on these amounts and have endured a financial hardship as @ resulf of Defendants’
actions.

27. On or dbout April 1, 2009, Plaintiffs discovére,d_ that there were numerous errors in their loan
application that include fhe following; an overstatement of income by $.85'-,000.005, an
overstaternent ‘of theit assets by $46;000.00, a statement of tental incla‘m‘é of $ 2,931.00 a

- month from the rental of theiféur’ran’t_ residence when the home was nevér on the matket for
_rent. and no intention of such Wés‘ ever expressed, .an understatément -of -éxpenses by

$35,172.00 a year, an overstatement of the value of an asset, with Bank of America in the

; amount of $23,273.40, the listing -of an -asset they. did not own with General America-Corp.,
; an incorrect reporting of the source of down payment, and the, listing.of 0 (zero) as the

~ numbgr of deperndents when the applicants had 1 (one).
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The Lenders and Mortgage ‘Brokers knowingly took advantage of Plaintiffs' inability to

protect their- interest by ot supplying the application. prior-to the closing: tfansactiqnv‘ and |

29.

30.

- 31,

following thiough the. process. of collécting -all actual and truthful financial documentation
from the Plaintiffs therefore inducing them to believe:this-was the information utilized for the
application.

Plaintiffs ar(e‘ informed and believe that Your-Best-Rate. Financial, LLC and Brant Gilmore
willfully, recklessly, and negligently falsified the Toan application and.made no attempt to
ensure that.this information was accurate.

Plaintiffs are informed and. believe that these- errors demonstrate Defendants and their
predecessors in interest breached the duty of trust thatis.owed by moitgage brokers: to their
clients. Their actions are. at best negligent, reckless, and willful.

On or about July;20, 2009, Plainiffs' attorney sent’a Qualified Written Reguest ("QWR") to

' Countrywide Home Loans seeking finf_ér_rnat”ion about pa‘ym'ent history and; ‘among other

things, Couritrywide's relationship with Your-Best-Rate Financial LLC. This QWR. was

. signed for by Nelson Hernandez on J uly 24,,2009.

32.

On or-about.July 26, 2009, Bank of America as Successor in interest to Countiywide Home:

- Loans reported negative credit information against Plaintiffs.

33.

Bank of America sent a letter dated July 27, 2009 to the attorney for Plaintiffs

' acknowledging receipt of the QWR:, but.stating that Bank-of ‘Ainerica needed authorization to

release credit information to the.attorney: The letter stated thal authorization could be faxed

te Bank of America.
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34. Bank of America sent a letter dated August 1,2009 to the :'attorhay stating that they'could not

35.

36.

comply with the request because the: signatures for the borrowers did not match the
signatures on file.
No furthet correspondénce has been received by the attornéy as of the filing of the complaint,

and-the:entry has not;yé’t been, corrected on the eredit teport.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

As to Plaintiffs’ First Cause: of Action, the Cowrt finds that Defendant Bank of America
breached. its fidueiary duty fo Plaintiffs. Defendant. Bank. of Afrierica’s ageiits; Braiit
that capacity, owed a duty of utmost care, honesty; loyalty, in the transactions: pursuant to
S.C.. Code Ann. § 40-58-70. “,Br,ant Gilmore and Your-Best-Rate: Financial, LLC have

willfully, recklessly, and negligently caused damage:to Plaintiffs through theirbreach of their

fiduciary duty fo Plaintiffs, Brant Gilmore and Your-Best-Rate Financial, LLC kil‘owih‘g"l'yf |

falsified documents and entered false information on Plaintiff’s the loan application to
procure a mortgage on Plaintiffs’ home. Brart Gilmore and Your-Bést-Rate Financidl acted

as agents: for Plaintiffs in ob‘taining;a mortgage with _r.sch’edul_ed‘ payments that they knew: .or

.. should have knowu: Plaintiffs could not afford. In a breach-of fiduciary .case, 4. plaintiff i§

entitled to all .dfamagesfo_r_-'hmm caused by the breach of ‘a fiduciary duty owed to him or her.

Moore v. Moore, 360'S.C. 241, 253; 599 S.E. 24 467473 (Ct. App. 2004). Damages in an

action for breach of a fiduciary duty ate. those proxiiiately resultinig from the wiongful

conduct of the defendant. Id. The Court'heard testimony frem Plaintiff Lisa Willett as tg her

and Alan Willett’s actual darhages. Plaintiff Lisa Willett testified. that their actual damages
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37,

38.

'were at least $225,000.00. The Court finds. that as a direct and proximate result of

Defendant Bank of America's breach of its breach of its fiduciary duty ‘t_o"PIaihﬂffs; Plaintiffs
suffered actual damages in the amount of $225,000.00.
Also; due the willful, wanton, reckless, grossly negligent conduct of Defendant. Bank. of

America, the Court finds that Plaintiffs are entitled to. punitive damages. Punitive.damages

may propetly be imposed ‘to further a state's legitimate interests in punishing. unlawful

conduct and deterring its-repetition. BMW of North America v. Gore, 517 U.S. 559, 116 S.C.

1589 (1996). The state's interest in awérding punitive damages- must remain consistent with
the. -principle of penal theory that “the; punishment should. fit the
crime.  Mitchellv. Fortis Ins. Co., 385 5.C. 570, 686 S:.2d 176 (2009)(citing, Adkinson. .
Orkin Exterminating Co.; Inec., 361 8.C. 56, 164, 604 SE2d 383, 389 (2004)). "Puni,tiv;:

damages serve at least three important purposes: punishment of the defendant's reckless,

willful, wanton, or malicious conduct; deterrénce of similar futureé conduct. by the defendant
or othéfs; and compensation for the reckless or willful invasion of the plaintiff's private

rights." Clark v, Cantrell, 339 S.C. 369, 379 S.E.2d'528, 533 (2000). The Court héreby

finds-that Plaintiffs are entitled to an:award of $6‘75~,00@.00’_in punitive:damages.

South Carolina. courts have consistently declined to “draw -a. mathematical bright line

. between the Con,é‘tithtipnall;}('a,.CCEptable and the constitutionally unacceptable that would fit, -

every case. Mitchell, Jr. v. Fortis Ins. Co., 385 S.C. 570, 586, 686 S.E.2d 176, 184 (2009).
However, in. Gamble v. Steveiison, the South Carolina Supreme Coutt identified. eight
considerations that trial courts should apply. in conducting a p"os_t,‘.-judgmentfi due process
review of::ariy» punitixfev,damaggs award: See-Gamble, 305 $.C. 104,110, 406 S.E.2d 350, 353-

54.(1991). The Gamble factors are: (1) d,efendjant"s. degree -of culpability; (2) ~du_fation of the
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conduct; (3) defendant's aWafen’ess’ or-concéalment;- (4) theexistence of similar past conduct;
* (5) likelihood the award will deter the defendant-ot othets from like.conduct; (6) whether the
award is rfeasonably related to the harm likely- to result from .such -conduet: (7) defendant's
ability to are to pay; and.(8) other factors deemed appropriate. Gamble, 305 S.C. at 111—-:1'2,.
406 S.E.2d at 354. The trial Court is not requ"ired to make: a fi_nding of fact for each. Gamble
| factor to uphold a punitive. damages award. McGee v. Bruce Hosp. Sys., 321 fo;,C». 340,.346,
468 Sl.‘E.Zd 633, 637 (1996). In addition fo 'c,,on,s'iﬁ@‘riﬁfg the Gamble factors when reviewing
punitive 'dfamage’sx ‘South Camlinaz»é'our'tq are also required to consider three-additional factors
U.S. 575, 116 S.Ct. 1589 (1996), which include: (1) the .degree of reprehensibility of the
| defendént,'s miscondudt; (2) the ‘di'sparity between. actual and. 'po.tential._hafm suffered by ‘
‘blaintiff. and the amount -of ‘the punitive damages; (3) the difference between the: punitive
damages awarded by the jury and the civil penalties -authorized ‘or imposed in comparable:
cases. Mitchell, Jr. v. F‘ortf,isx/fns. Co., 385 S:.C. 570, 585, 686 S.B.2d 176, 184 (2009).
Among the Gore factors, the degreé of reprehensibility-of the defendant’s conduct is the:most
important factor in analyzing: t‘hb‘ reasonableniess of a punitive. d'afnagefs award, as some
wrongs are mote blameworthy than others. See M zftch'ell‘, 385 S.C.. at 587,691 S:E.2dat 185.
In Mztchelc, the: South Carolina Supreme Coust explained:
"[w ]e: have said in the ‘past that trial courts must c;“o;nsider both the Gambleand
the: Gore factors. James v. Horace Mann Ins. Co.; 371 S.C. 187, 195, 638 S.E.2d
667, 671 (2006)(“A1though we find the pumtlve damages award was reasonable
under the Gamble factors; we must also feview the. trial-court's riling on- punitive:
damages under Gore ™). ‘Howevet, considerations of Jud1c1a1 economy weigh in
favor of a ‘less burdensome and- duplicative analysis. We now hold

that Gamble remains relevant {o the poqtfjudgment ‘due. process analysis, but only
insofar as itadds substance to the Gore guideposts."”
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,Mitcl;ell, 385 S.C. at 587, 691 S.E.2d at 185. Accordingly, the Court will focus on the three
| factors set forth in Gore, to d_etdrr‘_nine'\ﬁvhether $675,000.00 is a reasonable amount:to award the
Plaintitfs in punitive damages.: | | |
- 39, Ti consideration of the, first Gore: factor, the degree of reprehensibility of the defendants

physi‘cal. as opposed to economic; (ii) whether the tortious conduct evinced an indifference to.
or a reckless disregard for the health or safety of others; (iii) whether the target of the:
~ conduct had financial -vul'nerabilft’yj (iv) whether the conduct involved repeated actions or
was an isolated incident; and (v) whether the harm was the. -reSui't. of intenitional malice,
trickery, or deceit, rather than mere accident. Mitchell, 385S.C. _570;; 587, 686 S.E:2d '1?76,,,
185 (2009). ’T’h;c Court finds that the hiarm suffered by Plaintiffs was mostly’ éeonomic.
However; at the hgaring, Plaintiffs testified that ‘thes_/' not only suffered financial hardship as.a.
restlt of Defendants® willful conduct, but they also suffered emotional liarm. Furthermore,
the Court" finds Athat Defendants’ reckless, willful and wantén condiict in forging documents.
evinced an indifference to .Pléli'ntiffs» who were: financially vulnerable. The conduct involved
repeated intentional actions of dishonestly, trickery and deceit. Additionally, the Court finds:
that these actions were not.mere accidents, but intentional actions that résul,t.ed‘ in-harm to-the
Plaintitfs. Therefore, the Court finds that this punitive award is apprdpr‘i*ate in light of the
degree of reprehénsibili,ty of Dg’fendz.m’t‘Bank of America’s actions.
40. In consideration of the second Gore factor, the disparity between actual and‘ potential- harm
-Suf;fered'.by_plziintiff and the amount of the punitive da;rnfage‘;s,;therurt finds that the; puni’tiVe;:
award is reasonabl’/e.' [n -analyzing this factor, a court may consider: the likelihood 'that the

award will deter the defendant from like conduct] whether the award.is:reasonably related to

Page 10:0£20




41.

the harm likely to result from such conduct; and the defendant's ability to pay. Mirchell, at
588, 686 S.E.2d ét 185. The Court finds that th_ig punitive award is appropriate ds it will
is_e,r,\ce to. deter future like conduct, it is reasonably related to the particular harm ‘likely result
from ‘their conduct, and Defendant Bank of Ametica has the ability to pay this punitive
'éward.

In consideration of the third Gore factor, the difference between the punitive damages.

awarded by the jury and the civil penalties authorized or imposed in comparable cases, the.

Court finds. that this punjtive award is reasonable. In Freeman v. A. & M. Mobile Home

Sales, Inc., where a buyer of mobile home brought. suit against, inter alia, financial
institution, for fraud, violation of Unfair Trade Practices Act, and violation of Consumer

 Protection Code; the Court of Appeals of South Carolina upheld a.punitive damages-award of

$40,000:00, when the actual damages were only $1,1750.00. See Freeman v. A. & M: Mobile
Home Sales, Inc., 293 S.C. 255, 359 S.E2d 532 (Ct. App.'198'7). The Freeman court held

that the punitive damages award was reasonable and not grossly excessive, even though that,

"amount was more than twenty-two times the amount of acfual damages. ‘See id. -Also, a

South Carolina trial court upheld a jury award in actual damaggs of $3,100,600 and punitive

damages of $_A5_,0”ﬂ0,‘00_() for breach of contract breach. of fiduciary duty, constructive fraud,

« Degligent misrepresentation, and a violation of the South: Carolina Unfair Trade Practices

" Act. Maybank v. BB&T Corp., 2014 WL 7778749 (S.C.Com.PL). In Maybank;; the. punitive.

award was approximately 1.5 times the amount of actiial damages awarded. See id.
Furthermore, -as the Mitchell Court noted:
“»S‘,.Ou“th Carolina courts have most eften upheld verdicts on the low-end of the
single-digit spectrum, but have frequently deviated from thisnorm-in cases

involving particularly egregious conduct. See James, 371 S.C. at 196-97, 638
S.E.2d at 671-72 (upholding a 6.82 to 1 ratio); Mackela v. Bentley, 365 S.C. 44;
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! 614 S.E.2d 648 (Ct.App. 2005) (upholding a.3.75 to 1 ratlo) Austin v. Specialty

| Transp. Services, Inc., 358 S.C. 298, 594 S.E.2d 867 (Ct.App. 2004) (upholdlng a
| 2.54 to 1 ratio); Collins Entertainment Corp. v. Coats & Coats Rerital Amus‘emem‘
! 355.8.C. 125, 584 S.E.2d 120 (Ct.App.2003) (upholding:a 9.96 to | ratio)...

. Mizfjch_el.l, 385S.C.at5 93, 686 S.E.2d at 188 (footnote-omitted)., Therefore, the Court finds that
, an award of three times the amount of actnal d'arnages is reasonable in light of other punitive
awards in comparable cases.

‘42, Therefore, the C_ou;.t finds that 4 punitive award of $675,000.00 is reasonable and éppropriate
in this case. The Court also finds that this amount is appropriate in .li"ght of Defendant’s
culpability~and that this: amount is likely to deter Defendant Bank of Awmerica and other
defendants from engaging in like conduct. Lastly, the Court finds. that tlﬁis punitive award is

-satisfies due process and that it is not excessive.
L 43. As the Plaintiffs' Second Cause of Actibn, the Court firids. that Defeéndant failed to. ascertain
Plaintiff's attorney preference in violation of Section 37-10-102 of the: Consumier Protection
Code: Specifically, the Couit finds at no time prior to the closing, did Your-'iBest4Rafe’_-
. Financial, LLC, Brant Gilmore or Coux;tryw'ide Home Loans n/k/a Bank of America attempt
to determine whaf closing agent Pldintiffs wanted to uée. Defendant’s failure to adhere-to the
attorney preference st‘atutc;,'p’crmjts P,laintiffé‘ to recover damages pursuant to. Se,cftién 37-10-
105. Section 37- 10. -105 (A) provides, "[i]f a creditor violates a provision of this chaptet,
_ thef debtor has a cause of action, other than, in a class action, to recover actual .damages and
also @ tight in an action, other than in a class action, to recover from th;t? person violating this
chapter a ;penalty' iit an amount determined by the court of not less. than one thousand five
i hundred -dollars and not moré than seven thousand five husidred dollars.” Accordingly, the
| | : ~Court hereby awards actual damages to Plaintiffs and a total of $7,500.00 in.-damagcs to both

, Plaintiff Lisa Willett and Alan Willett, individually, putsuant to Section 37-10-105. The
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. Court-pfilr“ther finds that Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of costs of the action and

re’asonablé"a‘tt()rney"s fees, as.addressed below.!
44.As to Plaintiffs’ Third Cause' of Action, the Court finds Defendant engaged in
unconscionable conduet in violation of Section 37-5-108. Section 37-5-108(b) provides that:
[i]n applying subsection (1), consideration may be given to the.extension of credit.
to a consumer if, considering the consuiner's curtent and expécted income, eurrent
obhgdtlons and ‘employment status, the creditor knows or should know that the
consumer is uhable to.make the scheduled are to payment on the obligation when
due. Rental renewals necessary to acquire. ownership in a consumer Tental-
purchase agreemént are 1ot Qbhgdtlo_ns contemplated in this item (b).
Viewing the allegations of the complaint as frue, the Court finds that the mortgage loan was
unconscionable. Specifically, Defendant, without Plaintiffs' knowledge, increased their income
by $85,000.00 decreased expenses by $35,172.00, so ‘that the Plaintiffs could qualify for a |
mortgage:loan in which the Plaintiffs ultimately could not afford. Section37-10-105(c) provides
that:
If the court finds as a matter of law that the agreement or transaction is
unconscionable pursuant to Section 37-5-108 at the time it was made, or was

induced by unconscionable conduct, the court may, in an action other than a class
action:

* Defendant Bank of America argues tha Plaintiffs are precluded as a matter law from
recovering from this claim because Your-Best-Rate Financial, LI.C'was the creditor that violated
the attoméy preference statute, not Bank of America. Defendaiit Bank of America further argues
that Plaintiffs cannot recover from itisimply bécause of its status as an assignee as a matfer of
law.. However, the South Carolina Supreme Court emphasizes in Rosemorid-v. Campbell that the
Consuier Protection Act altered common-law asSignment of debt rules-with respect to consumer
credit sales by prohibiting “waiver of defenses” clauses iri consumer credit sales and loan
agreements, and subjecting assigniee of seller's rights to all ¢laims and defenses of consumer
against seller, even though ass'ignee; is holder.in due course-or consumer has purported to waive
claims and defenses against assignee. Rosemond v. Campbell; 288.5.C. 516, 524,343 S.E:2d
641, 645.(Ct. App. 1986). See also.South Carolina Code Ann. Sections.37-2-404, 37- 2-404(5),
and. 3'7~3-410(4). Therefore, the Court disagrees with Defendant Bank of America's contention,
and finds that Plaintiffs are entitled to recovery from Bark of Armerica on this claim.
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(1) refuse to- enforce the agreement, or a terin, of part: of the ‘agreement ‘or
transaction that the court deterimings to have been unconscionable :at the
time it was made.
Due to the willful, grossly negligent, wanton, reckless conduct of the Defendants in violation of
Pléin’tiff‘s rights, the Court finds that the most appropriate remedy is'to order that all debt; past
.due amounts, accrued interest, finance charges, penaltles and other arrearages related.to the
mortgage loan-as of July 1,"2015 shall be deemed’ forgwen Plaintiffs will only be respons1ble
'fo,_r'.t,he p‘nnC‘xpaL amount remaining on the mortgage loan, starting from July 1, 2015, minus the
van-)ount already paid by Plaintiffs and the amount the: Court orders to be deemed forgiven
45. The Coutt finds that. Plaintiffs” Fourth Cause of Action fails as a matter of law “The. Couit
finds that theaMbrtgage‘- Brokers Act does not apply to Defendant Bank of America because it
is neither @ inortgage broker mor a loan originator. See S.C. Code Amnn. § 40-58-78.
-fFur‘t'h’@n“nore, Defendant: Bank of Ameérica falls: under an éxpress exemption W%ﬁhjn this
statute. Section 40-58-20(16)(b) defings a exempt person as "4 depository institution of 4
subsidiary that 1s wholly Own'éd- and controlled by the depository institution and regulated by
 afederal ba-nking:’égcncy or: an institutionregulated by the Farm Credit Administration." As a
“depository institution, Defendant Bank of Ameriea falls unde? this exemption. Therefore, the
Court finds, that, Plaintiffs -aré-not entitled to récover any d,éin‘éiges'- from Defendant Bank of
Armerica on thi"s cause ef action.
46. As to Plaintiffs' Fifth Cause of Action, the Court finds that Defendant Bank: of America
‘violated the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act of 1974 (RESPA) found at 12 USC
Section 2605. Specifically, the Court finds that Plaintiffs made-a demand under RESPA: and
never received a respomse. A’ violation o"f;‘fRES‘P.-A results .in damages under 12 USC §;-

2605(f), which provides that:
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“[w]hoever fails to comply with any provision of this section shall be liable to the
borrower for each such failure in an amount equal to any aciual damages to ‘the.
borrower as a result of the failure and any additional damages, as the. court may:
allow; in the case of a patfern or practice of noncompliance with the requiréments:
of this section, in an amount-not to exceed $2,000.*

Undér RESPA, actual damages include emotional distress. See Wright v. Litfon Loan Servicing
LP, No. 05- 02611-JF, 2006 LEXIS 15691, at *9-10, 2006 WL 89130. ( E.D. Pa. Apr. 4,
2006)(concluding that 'actual damages’ includes damages for non- economic loss, such as pain,
suffering, and. emotional distress"); Ploog v. HomeSide Lending, Inc., 209 F;Supp.Zd 863, 870

(N.D. 1L 2002); Johnstone' v. Bank of America, N.A., 173 F.Supp.2d 809, 814-16 (N.D. IIL.
\ -

2001); Carter v. Countrywide Home Loans, Inc., No. CIV. 3:07-€V651, 2009 WL 1010851, at

*3 (E.D. Va. Apr. 14, 2009). In regards to emotional damages, Plaintiffs testified to the
significant impz}ct of Defenidant’s conduct. Alan Willet testified that the Defendant’s conduct
caused a lot of stress and a strain on his marriage. See Tr. (Alan Willet- Direct at p,l;3",, lines, 1-
4). Moreover, Alan testified:
- "[a]nd for me the biggest thing is my .sojn’: As a parent, y_o‘u, want. to provide for

your child. It costs us thé ability to save for his future, put away money for

college....It was 4 ---it was devastating."
Tr..(Alan Willet- Direct at p.13, lines 6-12). Lisé Willett testified to the stress. of becoming so
overwhelmed that she sought the‘se‘r-vi'ccs of a therapist and was worried about the effects of the
stress-on her pregnancy. She also testified to the impact on.her time with her children, her work,
her credit score dropped over 100-points and she was denied financing for a vehicle. She further
testified that she had been reported late with credit bureaus fifty times since the QWR and
twenty-one times since the ori"ginél judgment was in p];xce. Tr. (Lisa Wille,t-’Crdss‘) at ‘p..87_,» lines
2—7-. Based on the foregoing, Plaintiff Lisa Willet is entitled to $25,000.00 in emotional

damages, and Plaintiff Alan Willett is entitled to $15,000.00 in emotional -damages.

e
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A.dditi'c)n'ally, the Court finds that Plaintiffs. have. proven that Defendant Barnk of America

-engaged iinv a,-prapti",ce and pattern of violating RESPA -as evident by Plaintiff Lisa Willet’s

testimony that Defendant Bank-America reported her late to the credit buteaus, fifty times after

+ refusing to fully respond to the QWR.. Therefore, the Court finds that Plaiht-’iffs are enfitled to

’stéthtory darﬁages of $2,000.00 each, actual damages, and attorney’s fees and costs.

47. As to Plaintiffs* Sixth Cause of Action, the Court finds that Defendant Bank of America
violated the South Carolina Unfair 'Tr"adé Practices A(;t. Uxilder, the. :'Sou‘;h Carolina Unfair
Trade Practices Act, any p‘efson- who suffers an ascertainable loss of money of property as.a

| result of the use or einployment,b'yx anothér person of an unfair or deceptive method, act or
practice may recover actual damages. S.C. Code Ann. § 35-5-140. To recover in an action.
under -SC-U'TPA, the plaintiff must. show: that: (1) the: defendant engaged in a‘1v1. unfair or
deceptive act in the conduct of trade or commerce; (2) the unfair or deceptive act affected the
' public interest; and (3) the plaintiff suffered monetary or property loss as a result of 'the- ,
defendant's. unfair or deceptive acts. Heavl‘tﬁ Proniotion. Specialists, LLC. v. S.C. Bd: of
Dentistry, 403 S.C. 623, 638, 743 S.E.2d 808, 8167(2013_). Under the South Caroliiia Unfair
Trade Practices Act, unfair trade. practices. are practices which -are offensive to publ‘fq» policy
"ot which are immoral, unethical, or oppressive while a deceptive practice is one which has a
tendency o deceive. Id.- Also, the South Carolina Unfair Trade Practices Act (SCUTPA), a
plaintiff may show that unfair or deéept_‘iv‘e_ acts or practices have an impact upon the. public
interest by demonstratiﬁg a potential for repetition. B'ahi;inger v. ADT Sec. Services, Iiic.,
'942 F.Supp.2d 585 (2013). Viewing the allegations Of the complaint as true, the Court finds
that Defendant Bank of America engaged m an unfair or deceptive act m the conduct of trade

or commerce. The Court also finds that Plaintiffs presented evidence proving that the unfair
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or deceptive acts of Defendant Bank of America affected the public interest. Here, Your-
Best-Rate Financial, LLC and Brant Gilmore affected commerce in South Caroliria. by
offering to act a$ @ lender and/or mortgage broker to individuals in South Carolina. Your-
Best-Rate Financial, LLC and Brant Gilmore. engaged in unfair and 'de‘_ceptiVe trade practices
by, among other things, falsifying Plaintiffs’ the loan application, inducing them to eriter into.
a loan agreement that could not afford or maintain are to payments on. The actions of Your-
~ The actions of Your-Best-Rate Financial, LLC and Brant G1lmore have a real and substantial
potential for repetition and are a threat to the: public interest. Thus, the Court finds that ‘the-
Plaintiffs are entitled to recovery under the SCUTPA in amount of $225,000.00 in actual
- damages. Moreover, Section 39-5-140(a) provides that:
[1]f the court finds that the use. or employment of the unfair or deceptive method,.
act or practice was a willful or knowing. violation of § 39-5-20, the -court shall
award three times the actual damages sustained and may provide such other relief
as it deems necessary or proper. Upon' the flndmg by the court of a violation of
this article, the court.shall award to-the. person bnngmg such action under thli
section reasonable attorney's.fees and costs.”
"Willful violation” is defined by statute as occurring when the party committing the violation

knew or should have known that his conduct was a viol-a,t'i_-on'of the SCUTPA. Section 39-5-

140(d). The Court of Abpeals of South Carolina held that “[i]f, in the exércise of due diligence,

~ a pérson of ordinary prudence engaged in trade or commerce ¢ould have ascertained ‘that his

coﬁduct violates the Act, then such conduct is “willful” within the meaning of the statute.” State
ex rel. Medlock v. Nest Egg Soc. Today, Inc.,290 S.C, 124, 128, 348 S:E.2d 381, 384 (Ct. App.
1986). Here, the Court finds that Your-Best-Rate Financial, LLC and Brant Gilmiore s_h(‘)'uld‘
have known or ascertail?gd that theirnd’ecei)tive'_aCts violated the SCUTPA. Therefore, the Court

finds that the Defendant Bank of America willfully violated SCUTPA and thé Plaintiffs are
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entitled to recover three times the amount of their actual damages in addition to reasonable.

attorneys’ fees and costs.

48. The Court has reviewéd Plaintiffs Counsel’s Affidavit of Atterney’s fees and 'her“eb_y finds.

that aii-award of attorneys’ fees 'ih_the_'~amount' of $'100?700'.00 and costs of $23,270.24 is fair

\,

" and réasonable. See Exhibit A attached hereto‘.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED:

L

That Defendant Bank of America is to-pay Plaintiff Lisa Willet a:suin of $9,500.00 in

statutory damages pursuant to the Attorney Preference Statute and the Reﬁl Estate Procedures

' 'Settlement Act.

That Defendant Bank of America is to pay Plaintiff Allan Willeta sum of $9,500.00 i
Statutory damages pursuant to the Attorney Preference Statute and the Real Estate Procedures

Settlement Act.

. That Defendant Bank of America is to pay Plaintiff Lisa Willet a sum of $25,000.00 in

emotional damages pursuant to the Real Estate: Settlement Procedures Act.
That Defendant Bank of America is to pay Plaintiff Alan Willet a sum of $15,000.00 in

emotional damages pursuant-to the Real Estate Settlerhent Procedures Act.

.. That Defendant Bank of América is to pay Plaintiffs Lisa Willet and Alan Willef a sum of

$225,000.00 in actual damages.
That Defendant Bank of America.is to pay Plaintiffs Lisa and Alan Willet and.a sum of

$675,000.00 in punitive damages, if the Plaintiffs so elect.

. That Defendant Barik of America.s to pay Plaintiffs Lisa and Alan Willet a sum of

$675,000.00 in treble damages pursuant to.the South Carolina Unfair Trade Practices Act, if

Plaintiffs so elect.
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8.

10.

11 That Defendant Bank 6f America is to pay attorneys’ fees in' the amount-of $100,700.00 and

12.

13.

14'. :

Although the Court awards Plaintiffs punitive damages under Plaintiffs? First Cause-of
Action (Breach of Fiduciary), and treble damages-under the Plaintiffs* Sixth Cause of Action
(SCUTPA), the Court finds that Plaintiffs cannot recover both forms of exemplary remedies.
Plaintiff must elect between the exemplary remedies of p.uniﬁ:ve.;démages;,and:freme,.
damiages:

The Court further firids that Plaintiffs can only récover actual damages in the:amount of

$225,000.00 once-and must elect-which cause of action to obtain actual damages remedy.

That pursuant Section 37-10-105 (c), all debt, past due-amounts, accrued interest, finance

charges; penalties, and-other arrearages relat’eﬁ to the mortgage loan as of July 71,2015 shall

be: deemed forgiven. Plaintiffs will only be responsible for the principal amount remaining

“on the mortgage loan starting from July 1,:2015, mirius the amount already paid by Plaintiffs

-and the amoint the. Court.orders.to be.deemed forgiven.

costs of $23,270.24.

That Defendant Bank:of America is to pay Plaintiffs a total amount of $1,082,970.24 in.

:damages.

That this debt shall accrue intefest at.the judgment interest rate until paid‘in full,

That Defendant Bank of America, its subsidiaries and successors in interest shall have o

current’or future right to pursue collection of any debtsit may claim against the Plaintiffs in

relation to this transaction.

~ITIS SO ORDERED,
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May f ,2015

" Colunibia, South Carolina

The QﬁorablevD‘eAndreaﬂG.j Benjamin
Presiding Judgg, Fifth Judicial Circuit.
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